[Report of the Medical Officer of Health for Clerkenwell, St. James and St.
John].

Contributors

St. James and St. John (Clerkenwell, London, England). Parish Council.

Publication/Creation
1889.

Persistent URL

https://wellcomecollection.org/works/gén7eewb

Provider

London Metropolitan Archives

License and attribution

This material has been provided by City of London, London Metropolitan
Archives where the originals may be consulted.

You have permission to make copies of this work under a Creative Commons,
Attribution, Non-commercial license.

Non-commercial use includes private study, academic research, teaching,
and other activities that are not primarily intended for, or directed towards,
commercial advantage or private monetary compensation. See the Legal
Code for further information.

Image source should be attributed as specified in the full catalogue record. If
no source is given the image should be attributed to Wellcome Collection.

Wellcome Collection
London NW1 2BE UK

E library@wellcomecollection.org
https://wellcomecollection.org


http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/4.0/
http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/4.0/
http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/4.0/legalcode
http://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc/4.0/legalcode






















8

to the Nuunery) had sunk, along with many other fabrics origin-
ating in religions romance, before the reign of Elizabeth ; and,
when Norden wrote, an Alderman Roe had ‘a proper house
occupying the site.’

«The Wells, from which this tract and the hill comprising 1t
take name, are two in number, and continue in good preservation,
being bricked round to the depth from which they seemingly
spring (about five feet and a half), and enclosed besides from the
field wherein they are situated, by wooden railings. Though a
few yards only asunder, their waters differ in quality ; that of the
one being hard, sweet, and beautifully pellucid, while the other
more nearly resembles rain water, and is used only for the pur-
poses to which the latter is commonly applied. Neither are at
present supposed to possess any medicinal properties. An infant
brook issues from their united and ceaseless overflowing ; which
descending the hill and winding through the adjacent meadows,
at length finds its way to the comparatively distant Lea River.

“ This tract is regularly visited, and its limits marked at the
perambulation of the Parish, which takes takes place septennially ;
it is at present entirely under pasturage. The only habitations
apon it are two by the road side, traditionally said to occupy the
site of the dairy farm, which in the monastic time sent its produce
to the nuns of Clerkenwell. Part of an adjoining house being
also within the parochial line (as is signified by the usual initials
affixed to its front), the perambulators are obliged to pass through

this latter dwelling in order to assert their long established
boundary."

This part of the Parish has within the last few
years been laid out for building purposes. New

roads have been formed, and there are now 40
houses in assessment.

Rates—During the year the Rates made by
the Vestry were as follows :—

For the half-year to Michaelmas, 1888.

A Poor Rate of 1s. 5d. in the £, estimated to realize nett £23,545
A Metropolitan

Consolidated Rate 4d.

Lk ] L) LR 5r520
A Sewer Rate 1d. 5 7 = 1,380
A General Rate 11d. o et b 15,180

2s. 9d. £45,640
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For the half-year to Lady-day, 1889.
A Poor Rate of 18, 5d. in the £, estimated to realize nett £23,454

A Library Rate 1d. ¥ ™ ¥ 1,880

A Metropolitan
Consolidated Rate 5d. 2 o = 6,925
A Lighting Rate 2d. g I i 2,770
A General Rate 8d. & . s 11,080
2s. 9d. £45,700

The rates made in April, for the half-year to
Michaelmas, were based upon a rateable value of
£360,861, and those made in October, for the half-
year to Lady-day, upon a rateable value of £362,128.

The amounts required by the Guardians of the
Holborn Union were £25,179 in the first, and
£23,822 in the second half-year, total £49,001 (the
average for 14 years previous to the amalgamation
of Clerkenwell with the Holborn Union when
Clerkenwell managed its own poor under the Local
Act, being £28,093, the highest year being £34,534).
The Parish of Clerkenwell received from the
Common Poor Fund, £4,367 14s. 10d. and
£5021 15s. 6d. in the first and second half-years
respectively. _

The precept of the Metropolitan Board of Works
for the year 1888, was for the sum of £12,278 2s,
4d., and a supplemental precept for the three
months ending 31st March, 1889, was issued for
£3,765 18s. 8d., and that of the School Board for
the sum of £11,717 15s. 1d.

The Police precepts for the year amounted to
£7,412 18s. 2d.

It will thus be seen that of the £91,240 raised
during the year, the sum of £71,020 was required
by bodies beyond the control of the Vestry.

5,645 Summonses have been issued for the re-

covery of the rates for the four quarters of the year,
representing an average of 1,411 per quarter, a
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- Ward No. 5 (St. John’s). Animportant report was
received from the Committee, which, together with

the action of the Vestry

an appendix to this Report (page 113).

Metropolitan Board Precepts.—The following
is a list of the Precepts of the Metropolitan
Board of Works since the passing of the Metropolis
Local Management Act, 1855 :—

thereon, will be found as

Main

. : Bridge All gth

Drainage. Fire Brigade, E::penEm E:pe':m::: Total.

v gt B e Y om s B e £ » 4.
1857 —_ = — 1,161 4 3 1,161 4 3
1858 - — —_ 1,657 10 8| 1657 10 8
1859 2,767 3 0 — — 1915 9 2| 468212 2
1860 2,767 3 0 — - 1532 10 4 | 4,299 18 4
1861| 2,707 3 0© — — 1,717 14 11 4,484 17 11
1862 2767 3 0 —- — 1,586 16 3| 435218 3
1863| 2,767 3 0 i — 2058 1 7| 482 4 7
1864| 2,767 3 0 —_ _— 2667 6 6| 65424 9 6
1865 3,031 11 3 - — 1981 8 6 5,01219 8
1856/ 3031 11 0| 65056 65 2 — 250518 7| 613214 9
1867| 3,031 11 0| 506 5 2 — 332012 2| 6857 8 4
1868| 8,031 11 0| 506 5 2 s 2421 6 7| 5958 2 9
1869|3031 11 0| 505 6 2 — 2874 7 9| 6411 311
1870 3,309 6 0| B5L 11 O — 1611 & 8| 5472 2 3
1871) 1628 1 9 651 11 O -— 1,470 17 3 3,650 10 0
1872 471 10 10 531 19 6 — 1,669 11 6| 2663 110
18731 464 0 O 63119 b — 1,823 19 3 2,619 18 8
1874] 1638 8 9 6B0 B O -— 2,422 18 5| 464115 7
1875| 1,914 12 6 594 10 10 —_ 1818 7 2| 569210 6
1876| 1,758 4 7 630 19 10 — 2967 16 6 5,357 011
1877| 1,648 17 11 630 2 2 — 338156 9 11 5,604 10 0
1878| 1,889 10 9 673 18 10 208 7 62945 4 1| 5717 1 2
1879 1,719 2 © 832 1 6 667 9 5| 3,688 10 11 | 6,807 3 10
1880] 1,592 14 1 708 9 3 90612 6 (4,194 7 0| 75681 210
1881/ 168833 2| 844 2 8 |1,04616 5 | 462619 5| 8106 11 8
1882( 1,424 17 10 991 3 7(1,07518 85138 0 4| 8630 0 b
18831 1,246 8 4 |1,005618 2 |1,09011 7 |6531011 1| 8663 9 2
18841 1966 2 7 |1,09113 11,063 0 4 [497010 0| 9090 6 0
1885 1,670 14 11,096 5 61,188 17 8| 6,466 17 2 | 10,810 14 O
1886| 1,710 16 5| 1,142 710 |1,332 2 7 | 5,976 17 11 *10,162 4 9
1887/ 1,744 3 61,163 7 4|1,437 5 3|6756 2 9 [+11,099 18 10
1888 1,766 8 2| 1,139 13 10 | 1,408 10 3 | 7,968 10 1 |t4+12278 2 4
1889 434 14 3 04 12 4 330 1 2| 2,706 10 11 |+*35766 18 B

* £61 9s. 8d. was added to this amount for Government property mot in Valuation
List, and £19 1ls. 6d. was dedoected for reduetion in Valuation List by the striking out of
the Bessions House Assessment, making a net som of £10,149 12s. 6d.

+ £7 13s. 4d. is added to the amount for Government property not in Valuoation List.

4+ £8 65 8d. is added to the amount for Government property not in Valuation List.
** This amount is for the last guarter of the Board's existence to 81st March, 1880.
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New Street from Gray's Inn Road to the
Angel—TIn July, 1888, the Vestry addressed a
communication to the Metropolitan Board of
Works, asking why it is not proposed to construct
a subway under the new street for the reception
of gas and water mains, &c., and for access to
sewers similar to that built under Shaftesbury
Avenue, to which they received a reply that the
new thoroughfare will have to be carried on a
viaduct for 120 yards between Lucy’s Buildings
and Lane’s Court, and that where it crosses
Warner Street the whole of the space between the
surface of Warner Street and the underside of the
girders carrying the new street over it is required
for headway over Warner Street, and that if there-
fore, a subway were constructed, it would have to
dip down into the valley of the Fleet and rise up
again, and even in that case there is but little room
for a subway between the Fleet Sewer and the
surface of the roads, and also stating that at the
St. John Street Road end the New River main
would seriously interfere with the construction of
a subway. The Vestry, however, did not deem the
reasons given by the Metropolitan Board of Works
for not providing a subway satisfactory, and they
urged upon the Metropolitan Board of Works the
desirability of providing a subway at least under
the remaining portion of the street.

A letter in reply was received from the Metro-
politan Board of Works, stating that the Board is
advised that the advantages to be gained by the
formation of a subway in the portion of the street
referred to are not such as to justify the expendi-
ture, and as, moreover, the Board could not con-
struct the subway without further Parliamentary

powers, they were unable to comply with the
request of the Vestry.

In December a notice was received from the
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Metropolitan Board of Works, stating that it was the
intention of that Board to apply to Parliament in
the ensuing Session for an extension of time for
the compulsory purchase of the land and property
required for the formation of the street, and asking
the Vestry to express their assent, dissent, or
neutrality to such proposed extension of time, and
the Vestry directed that a reply be sent, stating
that they regretted the further delay in the com-
pletion of the street. They also informed the
Metropolitan Board of Works of their strong desire
that advantage be taken of the extension of time to
secure increased width in the street, and urged
the Board to accede to Mr. Robson’s motion
with that object in view; and in January the
Vestry had the satisfaction of receiving a reply
from the Board that they had resolved that the
portion of the new street, which will be between
Mount Pleasant and St. John Street Roal, shall be
made of the width of 60-ft. instead of 50-ft., at an
additional cost estimated at £27,000, which they
are advised can be done without further Parlia-
mentary powers being obtained. This was the
stage at which the matter had arrived at the 25th
March, 1889.

Bolton Court.—The Report on the question of
demolishing the houses in this Court under the
Artizans’ Dwellings Acts 1868-82, closed last year
with a statement that a fresh representation by the
Medical Officer had been referred to the Surveyor
to report thereon in accordance with the Act. On
the 5th July, the Surveyor presented his report,
but the Vestry’s Solicitors advised that as a con-
siderable time had elapsed since the Medical Officer
had presented his certificate, it would be better
that he should give another upon which to ground the
new proceedings. This was accordingly done, and
the Surveyor’s reportfollowed in due course. Copies
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of same were accordingly served on the Marquis
Northampton, Mr. Lewis Thomas, Mr. S. Wenkheim
and the executors of Mr. Tammadge, the owners
and leaseholders of the property, and notice was
given to them that the Vestry would proceed to
consider same on the 4th October. Letters were
in the meantime received from the Marquis
Northampton and Mr. Wenkheim, stating that
they would offer no opposition. The executors of
Mr. Tammadge appeared by Mr. Mote, their solici-
tor, and offered objections, and Mr. Thomas also
was present, but stated that he was not prepared
to urge any objections at the present moment.
After hearing the objections, the Vestry adjourned
the consideration of a motion that the houses be
demolished for three months.

Blectric Lighting.—In July, 1888, communica-
tions were laid before the Vestry from the Liondon
Electric Supply Corporation, the South Metro-
politan Electric Supply Company and Messrs. W.
T. Glover & Co., giving notice of their intention to
apply for Provisional Orders to supply Electricity
in the Parish of Clerkenwell, which were duly
referred to the Works Committee for consideration
and report. Messrs. Glover & Co., however took
no further steps towards obtaining such an order.
In due course the Committee had before them
Lord Crawford, Chairman, and Mr. Medcalfe,
Solicitor of the London Electric Supply Corpora~
tion, and Mr. Bircham, Solicitor of the Metropolitan
Electric Supply Company, on the subject. Having
carefully considered the schemes, the Vestry were
of opinion that it was desirable that encouragement
should be given to the development of Electric
Lighting, and with the view of obtaining all possible
benefit to the public from the competition of the
two companies, gave their assent to both schemes,
subject only to the condition that they should
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agree to keep the portion of the roads and footways
which are disturbed for laying the Electric wires in
repair for three years. To this condition both
companies assented. The DBoard of Trade then
appointed Major Marindin, C.M.G., to hold an
Enquiry into the various applications for Klectric
Lighting, commencing on 3rd April, and the matter
was at this stage at the close of the year to which
this Report relates.

Protection from Fire—In June the Vestry
received a letter from the Vestry of St. James,
Westminster, in favour of Fire Escapes being kept
under the charge of attendants at all times, both
by day and night, to obviate the delay and danger

which occurred at a recent fire in the Edgware
Road.

The Vestry, although they did not think it
necessary to concur in the suggestion of the Vestry
of St. James, Westminster, expressed the opinion
that an extension of the time during which the

men in charge of the fire escapes are on duty is
desirable.

In consequence of the fire referred to and to the
danger shown to exist, the Vestry in July received
a letter from the Metropolitan Board of Works,
gtating that on and after the 1st October next, the
hours during which Firemen shall be on duty with
the Fire Hscapes shall be from 9 p.m. until 7 a.m.
all the year round.

The Vestry also received a letter from the St.
Olave’s District Board of Works, expressing the
opinion that in the erection of Industrial Dwellings,
the requirements for the protection of life from
fire are not sufficiently considered, and that it is
expedient that statutory powers should be given
to some central authority to compel the pro-
vision of adequate means of protection of life from
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fire in all houses and buildings in the Metropolis.
The Vestry agreed with the views expressed therein
and forwarded a letter to the Home Secretary in
accordance therewith.

In Jauuary a letter was received from the Vestry
of Tslington, in favour of Fire escapes being avail-
able at any hour of the day or night, but suggesting
that the police should be trained to use them
during the daytime, and asking the Vestry, if 1t
concurred with those views, to communicate with the
Home Secretary, the Commissioner of Police, and
the Metropolitan Board of Works to that effect.

The Vestry concurred with the representations
made in such letter, and communicated with the
authorities suggested accordingly.

The Commissioner of Police answered the various
representations by a letter to the Paddington
Vestry as follows :

« With reference to your letter of the 6th inst., I am directed
by the Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis to acquaint you
that he understands the point which the Vestry urge on his con-
sideration to be that the members of the Police Force ought to be
trained in the use of Fire Kscapes, and that it should be a
standing duty of the Police to procure the Fire Escapes in all
eases where the necessary Firemen are not at hand.

« Under the present rules the Police give every assistance
which they can on the occasion of a fire breaking out in their
Divisions, and the benefit which the public derive from dheir
offorts is cheerfully acknowledged. The Commissioner has not
the slightest wish to lessen the assistance which is now given ; on
the contrary, he has now arranged with the Metropolitan Board
of Works that at some selected Police Stations, Fire Escapes will
be allowed to remain. But while anxious to give accommodation
on Police premises for Fire Escapes, the Commissioners cannot
agree with the Vestry that the working of such Fire Escapes, till
the Firemen arrive, should be imposed on the Police as a duty.
Sueh a duty cannot legally be demanded from a Police Constable
as n Constable; and while, as before, the Police will on the
occasion of Fire, cheerfully give all the assistance which they can
afford consistently with their other important duties, the Com-
missioner cannot accept on their behalt the responsibility which
the Vestry think should be attached to them as a standing duty.”



19

Royal Academy of Arts.—In May, 1888, the
Vestry forwarded a Petition to the President and
Council of the Royal Academy of Arts, pointing
out that the necessity of daily labour precluded the
large majority of the working classes from visiting
art galleries and institutions of a kindred nature
during the hours at which they are ordinarily
open to the public, and asking whether, having
regard to the importance of bringing the refining
and educating influence of such institutions within
the reach of artizans, they would allow their galleries
to be open on Saturday evenings at the same
entrance fee, and during the same hours as they
are opened in the last week of the Exhibition.
The Vestry also invited the other Vestries and
District Boards to support their Petition, and
thirteen of them did so.

The Vestry, on the 9th August, received a reply
from the Academy stating that they have carefully
considered the matter, and hope to arrive at a
decision before the Exhibition for 1889.

St. James Churchyard.—The Vestry have had
before them from time to time the question of
laying out St. James Churchyard as an open space.
An Act passed in 1887, the Open Spaces Act,
defines the steps which are to be taken, which are
very lengthy and time-consuming. These steps
have however been taken, and at the close of the
period to which this Report relates considerable
progress had been made in the formalities necessary

before a faculty can be obtained for carrying out
the work.

Open BSpace St. John Street Road, near
Percival Street-—An old plan, dated April, 1816,
has been found during the year among some similar
documents in the Surveyor’s office, *of the piece
of vacant ground situate between Northampton
Street and St. John Street Road, given up by the
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tenants of the piece of ground (subject to six
months’ notice on either side) on the terms of the
Agreement which expired at Lady-day last. The
Vestry consented to the proposal, and the Agree-
ment was endorsed accordingly.

Urinal Accommodation—Kiosks.—The Vestry
have had before them from time to time a letter
from the International Hygienic Society, calling
attention to the present lack of proper accommoda-
tion and retirement in Liondon for residents as well
as visitors, and peculiarly women and children ;
which want the Society proposes to remedy. The
letter stated that in order to more efficiently realise

its end, the Society is fully prepared to take apon
itself :

(1.) The erection and maintenance of wurinals, closets, and
retiring places, above-ground and under-ground, both for
men and women, of the very latest approved construction and
artistic appearance,

(2.) The substitution of such structures for those now obsolete,
worn-out, and otherwise objectionable.

(8.) The addition to those deficient of the requisite improvements.

and is prepared to execute the above works,
under adequate guarantee, and after accepted
plans, and maintain them at its sole charge, and
on such sites as the Vestry shall grant to it as most
suitable for the purpose.

The Society asked for the permission of the
Vestry to erect one of its Kiosks on Clerkenwell
Green, in front of the Sessions House, as an
experiment.

It produced designs of the erections in other
parts of Liondon, by which it appears that within
the building there is a free urinal of six stalls,
a small charge being made for the use of the closet
or lavatory. No advertisements are to be displayed
outside the Kiosks, and the Vestry is to be at

3
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received letters from the Vestries of Islington and
Fulham, urging that in any measure to be introduced
affecting the Local Government of the Metropolis
the power to make and collect the Poor and Local
Rates should be transferred to the District Couneils,
or such other bodies as it may be proposed to create
for the Liocal Government of the respective Parishes
or Districts comprised in the new County of London,
and that provision should be made for the Accounts
of all Local Rates being audited in the same manner
as the Poor Law Accounts. This Vestry fully
agreed as to the desirability of these suggestions
being acted upon, and they have accordingly
addressed a communication to this effect to the
Local Government Board, and to the Members of
Parliament for this Borough.

Election of Guardians of the Poor.—The Vestry
have had before them a letter from the Vestry of St.
George-the-Martyr, Southwark, forwarding reso-
lution inviting the Public Boards of the Metropolis
to co-operate in securing an assimilation of the
mode of electing Guardians of the Poor to that now
in use at Parliamentary and School Board Elections,
“as the present system is at once cumbrous, un-
certain, expensive and calculated to shake the
confidence of the public in a very responsible body

and their Clerk, whom the present system makes
their master.”

The Vestry agreed to co-operate in the matter,
and asked the Vestry of St. George-the-Martyr to
indicate the method of co-operation.

Official Voting Papers at Vestry Elections.—
The Vestry received a letter from the Vestry of
Kensington in favour of the compulsory use of
Official Voting Papers at Vestry Elections, and
suggesting that communications be made to the
Local Government Board and the Metropolitan
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Board of Works requesting that action may be
taken to obtain an amendment in the law before
the next Election.

The Vestry agreed with the views of the Kensing-
ton Vestry, and made communications to the Local
Government Board and Metropolitan Board of
- Works accordingly.

Replies were received from the Local Govern-
ment Board acknowledging the receipt of the
Vestry’'s communication, and from the Metropolitan
Board of Works stating that the Board could not
obtain any amendment of the law on the subject

during the ensuing Session of Parliament.

Old Records.—At the meeting of the Vestry on
21st June, 1888, the Rev. J. H. Rose, M.A., the
Vicar, said he wished to hand over to the Vestry a
- collection of old papers which had recently come
into his possession, and which might prove of local
interest. They contained a statement of the poor
rata for Clerkenwell from 1796 to 1849, in fact, the
account ran on to 1867. They were not quite
complete, but they contained statements of the
poor rate, and some very interesting information
was given. Amongst other things, it appeared that
in the year 1821, a census was taken of the parish
by the churchwardens and overseers, when there
were 9,726 families in the parish ; these being classi-
fied as follows :—Engaged in Agriculture, 72; in
trade, 6,953; no occupation, 2,701. There were
then 10 parishioners over 90 years of age and under
100 years. The papers further contained a report
with reference to the Trustee Board in 1829, about
which it gave some very interesting figures. The
trustee rate of 6d. in the £ they then found brought
in £2,900; so they would see there was a great
difference in the rateable value between then and
now. The poor rate only amounted to £8,333 in
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5.—That a Petition be presented to Parliament in support of
the proposed amendments ; that a Deputation be appointed to
wait upon the Committee of the Privy Council on Education to
express the views of the Conference, and that the Vestries and
Distriet Boards of the Metropolis be communicated with and
requested to present to Parliament Petitions in favour of the
proposed amendments, and to request their Parliamentary Re-
presentatives to support such Petitions.

A letter was afterwards received from Mr. T. E.
Gibb, Vestry Clerk of St. Pancras and Hon. Secre-
tary of the Conference, stating that the Education
Department had replied that it was at present

premature to receive the Deputation.

A Bill with the above object has again been
introduced into Parliament, but no progress has
been made with it.

City of Liondon Parochial Charities.—By an
Act passed in 1883, to make provision for the better
application and management of the Parochial
Charities of the City of London, the Charity Com-
missioners were empowered to make Schemes for
this purpose. In the first place the Commmissioners
are bound to compensate vested interests and fair
claims on moral grounds, and to maintain any
existing object within the City Parishes which the
Commissioners may think proper, legal and sub-
stantially beneficial to the inhabitants or any class
thereof, or so as to secure to the inhabitants and to
persons employed in the Parishes the benefits of

those things which the Act specifies as good for
London at large.

The surplus fund may be applied to some or all
of the following objects :— ;

The promotion of the Education of the Poor, by wmeans of

Exhibitions, Technical Instruetion, Secondary Education,
Art Fdueation, or Evening Lectures.

The ﬂstablishmept of, and maintenance of, Libraries or
Museums, &e., in such a way as to be useful for the Poor,

The provision of Open Spaces.
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The promotion and extension of Provident Institutions for
working men and women.

The establishment and maintenance of Convalescent Hospitals.
The general improvement of the condition of the Poor.

In 1887 the Charity Commissioners issued state-
ments classifying the funds, and showing the
present application of them, and as they were then
in a position to proceed to make the Schemes, the
question was ripe for consideration and discussion.

In December, 1887, the Vestry received a com-
munication from the London Municipal Reform
League, giving reasons why Open Spaces should
be one of the principal objects for the use of the
surplus funds, and in January, 1888, a letter from
the Vestry of Chelsea, expressing the opinion that
the promotion of Technical Education is an object
to which preference should be given.

It was thought that as Public Libraries were
among the objects for the application of the fund,
some aid might be obtained for the Clerkenwell
Library, then just called into existence by the vote
of the ratepayers, but this hope was dispelled by
the answer of the Charity Commissioners to a
Deputation from the Parish of St. Pancras, who
approached them with a similar view, that they
did not favor the distribution of these funds to
individual parishes, but wished to give them a
broader scope. The Vestry, therefore, on the 1st
March, 1888, passed a resolution to invite the
views of the other Vestries and District Boards of
Central London as to the desirability of a joint
Deputation to the Charity Commissioners, urging
the very strong claims of Central London, where

so many of the city workmen live, to participate in
the disposal of the Fund.

The Vestry of St. Luke, and the Holborn
District Board of Works responded to the invitation,
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and delegates from each parish were appointed.
The delegates met from time to time to consider
the question, in the course of which the Rev.
J. H. Rose, M.A., Vicar of Clerkenwell, was
appointed Chairman, and Mr. Paget, Vestry Clerk
of Clerkenwell, Hon. Secretary to the Finsbury
Conference, and, at one of these Meetings, in May,
they unanimously passed tho following resolu-
tions :-—

1.—That in the opinion of the Delegates, an Institution,
gimilar in character to the Peoples Palace at Mile End, com-
bining means of recreation and Technical Education, is required
for Central London.

9.—That in the opinion of the Delegates an Institution of the
nature indicated in the foregoing resolution has many claims
upon the fund arising from the City Parochial Charities Fund,
from which fund a large contribution in aid should be given.

8.—That, in view of the promises of assistance to like objects
from the City Parochial Charities Fund, made to representatives
of other Districts of the Metropolis by the Charity Commissioners
the Delegates are of opinion that the Commissioners should be
approached with the view of obtaining contributions for the
proposed Institution for Central London.

4.—That the proposals contained in the foregoing resolutions
be submitted to the Local Authorities of the various Districts
interested, and that it be suggested to them to appoint Members
to form a Joint Deputation to wait upon the Charity Commis-
sioners for the purpose referred to in the last resolution.

In accordance with these resolutions, a large
Deputation, introduced by Captain Penton, M.P.,
waited on the Charity Commissioners on the
20th June, and presented a Memorial praying for a
promise of support, both to the establishment and

endowment of an Institution for the benefit of
Central Liondon.*

In the conversation which ensued, Mr. Anstie,
Q.C., the Commissioner, intimated that it would

-

* As this subject is mot only an interesting o but which vitally concerns the
edueational and material intereats of the Parish E.nﬂnﬁ,n Lr:dat:np;:pm and prosperity, : full

of the proceedi at this , with the M
mﬁzﬂn.f nge Meeting emorial presented, be found as an
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According to the Registrar-General's sub-districts in which the
deaths and biirths occurred, they stand thus :—

DEATHS. BIRTHS. EXCESS.
St. James - sv Bl = - 588 - - 278
Amwell - - 408 - - b0 - - 252
Pentonville- Ui i « B8B83 = - 265
Goswell - - 268 - - 628 - - 358

In each year, a number of deaths of the parishioners takes place
in general and special Hospitals, in the Workhouses, in the Infir-
mary, and in Lunatic Asylums, all of which are extra- parochial.

The number of deaths which occurred in the Hospitals was 161 ;
in the Workhouses, 79; in the Infirmary, 105, and in the Lunatic
Asylums, 8; 3 deaths also occurred in the street; so that the extra-
parochial deaths in all amounted to 356; making a grand total of
1,524.

At the Census in 1871, the population of Clerkenwell
amounted to 65,380 ; in 1881, to 69,076 ; the increase being 3,696,
Assuming this rate of increase to have continued during the last
seven years, the present population of the Parish would be 71,659.

At this rate, the intra-parochial mortality for the year has been
16'2 per 1,000; including the hospital deaths, 18:5; and the
workhouses and infirmary deaths, 21°2 per 1,000,

Hence the mortality of the year has been slightly below that of
the preceding year, and is below the average of the last 10 years.

Hence, although the mortality of the year has slightly diminished,
it would certainly be less if the order and personal and home clean-
liness of many of the inhabitants were more carefully attended to.
In the model dwellings, where these conditions are studiously ob-
served, the mortality is much lower. Thus in the Farringdon Road
Buildings, which I do not consider the very best in the parish, the
mortality of the year has been 12 per 1,000 only, against 21 per
1,0C0 in the whole parish, and 18 in the Metropolis.

The mortality of all London during the year, was 18 5—That of
the West Districts, 18-3; the North Districts, 16'6; of the Central
Districts, 25°7; of the East Districts, 21'8; and of the South
Diltriﬂt!'l 17-2.











































































VESTRYMEN
~ Blected pursuant to the Metropolis Local Management Act,
18th & 19th Vie., eap. 120.

WARD No. 1.

' All that portion of the Parish which lies north of a line drawn from the weet boundary
he Parigh at Baitle-bridge, along the centre of Pentonville-road, to the east boundary
‘i the Parish at the top of the City-road, thence up High-street and Liverpool-road to
rmon Lane, thence westward (according to the boundary of the Parish,) to Caledonian-
ad, including Nos, 61 to 77, and 68 to 100, in that road, and 6 to 17, Caledonian-
escent, thence to the western boundary at Battle-bridge, and all that portion of the
rish which is situate at or abont Muswell-hill.

GO OUT OF

OFFICE IN

Mr. WILLIAM LEMON KELLAWAY... 57 White Lion Street
| Mr. GEORGE WILLIAM BETJEMANN 26&38,Pentonville Rd.
8907 Mr. ALFRED GEORGE ALLARD ... 5, Rodney Street

| Mr. JOHN SCHNAUBER... ... 14, White Conduit St.

‘Mr. ADOLPH CLAUSS .. .. .. 32, Pentonville Road
391 |Mr. HENRY FINIGAN .. .. .. G54, Chapel Streeet

1Mr. ALFRED COKER .. ... 130, Pentonville Road
(Mr. JAMES FRANCIS KELLY ... .... 21, Tysoe Street

Mr. THOMAS SIMNETT «os 79, Chapel Street

Mr. JAMES GIBSON ... 24, Penton Street

892{Mr. GEORGE MORRIS ... .. .. 17, High Street
Mr. GEORGE GRIFFITHS ... Ia, Penton Street

WARD No. 2.

All that portion of the Parish which lies within a line drawn along the centre of King's
ross-road, from Baker-street to Battle-bridge, thence up Pentonville-road to the north-
st corner of Claremont-square, thence down Amwell-street and Rosoman-street to
xmouth-street, along Exmouth-street and Mount-pleasant to the boundary, thence along
@ houndary of the Parish to King’s Cross road, bottom of Baker-street, including nearly
18 whole of the House of Correction.

Mr. JOHN CHARLES MENCE ... 100, King’s Cross Road
Mr. ANGELO BECK ... ... 29, Granville Square

904 Mr. FREDERICK GEORGE SCHEIB 55, Amwell Street

Mr. JOHN F. BLENNERHASSET ... 1a& 18, Lower Vernon St.
\Mr. EDWIN WESTON ... 9, Holford Square

Mr. HENRY A. ATKINSON ... 27, Great Percy Street
: Mr. WILLIAM ROBSON ... ... 19, Holford Square
891 { Mr. JAMES JOHNSON . . 50, Baker Street

Mr. WILLIAM NORVELL ... ..« 25A, Penton Street
.Mr, JOHN ROSS <+ 40, Exmouth Street

Mr. ALFRED JOHN DIXIE ... ... 13, Wilmington Square
Mr. ROBERT CHARLES MURRAY 113, Pentonville Road

iBBE- Mr. ARTHUR THOMAS CATLEY... 23, Lloyd Square

Mr. WILLIAM PIERPOINT ... .« 240, St. John Street

‘Mr. GEORGE ELCOCK w31, Wharton Street




- o4
WARD No. 3.

All that portion of the Parish within a line drawn along the Pentonville-road, from the
north-west corner of Claremont-square, to the junction of the City-road and Goswell-roady|
thence down Goswell-road to corner of Spencer-street, including Nos. 200 to 320 on
north-east side of Goswell-road and Nos. 1 and 30, in Sidney-street, thence along Spene
street, Myddelton-street, Eosoman-street and Amwell-street to the north cormer
Claremont-gquare.

Mr. GEORGE ANTILL
Mr. DECIMUS ALFRED BALL
Mr. DANIEL COOKSEY
Mr. WM. BLAGDON RICHARDS, B.A.

‘Mr. GEORGE RICHARD DIX
Mr. JOSIAH LEAVER...
Mr. JAMES DURRANT SPIRES
Mr. REUBEN SQUIRE

(Mr. EDWARD SANS ...
Mr. CHARLES HENRY NORBURY... 59, Myddelton Street
Mr. SAMUEL BRIGHTY ... g, Upper Charles Stree
| Mr. THOMAS KEYWORTH EVANS 327, Goswell Road

WARD No. 4.

43, Myddelton Street
221, Goswell Road
52, Amwell Street
320, Goswell Road

124, St. John Street Roa
3, Pentonville Road
205, Goswell Road
37, Myddelton Square

1890-

1891+ F

3, Garnault Place

1892+

-

All that portion of the
of Bpencer-street, Mydde
the Parish, thence along the line of the Uld
thence along Clerkenwell-green
John-street, thence up the centre of St.
the centre of Percival-street, and up Goswell-road to Spencer-street.

TO GO OUT OF

well-green,
street to St.

OFFICE IN
(Mr. WILLIAM DAVIES ... ... 13, Claremont Square
Mr. WM. FRASER JACKSON ... 175, St. John Street
1890 Mr. GEORGE MASTERS... ... 300, Goswell Road
Mr. JOSEPH SADDINGTON ... 143, Farringdon Road
Mr. EDWARD JOHN PEARSON 45, St. John Street Road-
| Mr. Thos. MITCHELL GRIFFITHS 1a, Upper Charles Street
‘Mr. THOMAS WILDBORE .. 145,147,149, Farringdon Rd
Mr. REDMOND DENIS LYONS... 1, Newcastle Place
Mr, JOSEPH WALTON ... ... 7, Upper Charles Street
18911 pr. WM. HENRY DOUGLAS 21, Myddelton Street
Mr. ADOLPH DALDORPH ... 16 & 17, Upper Charles
Mr. MATHw. MATTHIAS HANLY 37, Aylesbury Street
Mr. ROBERT STEBBINGS 18, Myddelton Street
Mr. HENRY PHILIP SCHEIB ... 4, Myddelton Street
1892 Mr. Wi ROBINSON PUTTERILL 94, Farringdon Road
Mr. WALTER GOODY ... 106, Farringdon Road
Mr. HENRY PHILLIPS ... ... 44, Exmouth Street
Mr. FERDINAND MACHE o 1, Vineyard Walk

Parish within a line drawn from Goswell-road, along the centrél
lton-street, Exmouth-street, Mount-pleasant, to the boundary ¢

Fleet Ditch to New-street, opposite Clerken
(north side of Sessions-house) and Aylesbu
John-street to Percival-street, alon,
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9 FRANCIS COURT includes in a small yard lying off it on the
east side two cottages, called Albion Cottages, with one w.c.
between them. The Court is a blind alley, only approached
from Berkley Street—itself a narrow thoroughfare. All the
houses are old, some very dilapidated. No. 2 1s closed as unfit
for habitation. Backyards to houses small, especially on east

side.

3. BERKLEY COURT similarly opens into Berkley Street, and
is a blind alley blocked by wall of backyards in Albion Place,
containing 15 houses of three storeys, let out in tenements.
One house has been shut up for years, the basement had be-
come a receptacle for all kinds of filth, and the owner was
traced with difficulty.

4. BAGLE COURT.—Approached from Red Lion Street by a
very narrow covered entry, and from St. John's Lane by an
archway of sufficient width to admit a cart. Fifteen houses of
varying size, of which Nos. 18, 14, 15, and No. 2 are 80 placed
that it is impossible for their inhabitants to obtain a sufficiency

of light and air.

5. JERUSALEM COURT is a narrow winding Court, entered
from St. John's Square by a covered entry, with block of model
~ dwellings on the north side, which medical men have stated to
be very unhealthy, without throngh ventilation, and such as
should never have been built. Air and light are obstructed by an
archway under a dwelling house midway in the court. Beyond
this archway eastwards are several houses, old, dilapidated, shut
out from sufficient air and light by the houses in Albemarle
Street, and having once formed part of the large mansions
built there more than 200 years ago.

6. AYLESBURY PLACE.—Entered from Aylesbury Street by
very narrow arched entry opening through a narrow passage
into a wider paved court, closed in on all sides, consisting of
99 small two-roomed houses.

7, BISHOP'S COURT.—Narrow, blind alley, paved, entered
from Aylesbury Street, containing about 76 rooms, and a
population at the time of the Committee’s visit of 180 persons
_11 houses exceptionally tall, contaimng three floors and
basement, apparently about 150 years old, and probably from
their internal fittings and general decoration intended when









































































































